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Step 1. Review Existing Contract Provisions 

An effective contract review for entitlement related to unforeseen escalation begins with careful 

consideration of several provisions related to change. The provisions of particular interest include: 

¶ Force Majeure – Is any force majeure provision general or narrow/specific? 

Potential force majeure events include: 

o War (geopolitical tumult) 

o Changes in law, such as pandemic (Covid-19 as an example) related 

extensions or sanctions  

o Excusable delay, arising from unforeseeable cause, beyond control of 

contractor and without the fault or negligence of contractor 

o Otherwise unanticipated, such as the extended supply chain disruptions 

arising from Covid-19, restart and reconfiguration of global supply chains, 

and the impacts resulting from the war in Ukraine and the international 

community response. 

¶ 
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b. Was market research conducted with potential suppliers to determine 

possible need for an economic price adjustment clause before the 

solicitation was issued? 

c. Is FAR 52.216-5 applicable for fixed price contracts having “unit prices” for 

itemized supplies? 

3. Were itemized materials of construction called for or provided in the bid? 

a. Changes to Federal Requirements. It is important to review any agency 

Master Agreement at time of contract and subsequent amendments (if 

any) and ascertain the contractor’s requirement to comply. 

 

Step 3. Identify Potentially Applicable State Laws 

Beyond the contract, state laws may provide avenues for relief from sudden and unanticipated 

escalation. These laws, and their interpretation and application, vary by state. Examples of such 

laws that both owner and contractor must be aware of include those related to: 

¶ Force majeure and acts of God, which may include “all misfortunes 

and accidents arising from inevitable necessity which human 

prudence could not foresee or prevent.” 

¶ Impracticable where court may relieve duty to perform if 

performance has unexpectedly become impracticable due to a 

supervening event. 

¶ Doctrine of Frustration of Purpose, where a supervening event 

fundamentally changed the parties’ overall bargain. The scope of 

relief may include contract modification. 

o Legal duty to mitigate damages. Key questions include: Did the 

opportunity exist to pre-purchase and store materials? Was any 

partial payment for stored materials allowed or requested? Was any 

provision for same made in contractor’s bid? Did opportunity exist 

to use cash to lock in pricing and assure delivery? Did suppliers 

claim force majeure or other similar mitigation, including any 

incorporation of the Convention on the International Sale of Goods 
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¶ Was the time between bid and contract execution extended, creating a 

material cost risk for the contractor? Related to this, is an ascertain of 

the requested hold period on pricing; any extension requested; and 

actual hold period realized? 

¶ Applicability of any delay provision (check for any no damages for delay 

provision)? 

 

Step 5. Other Considerations 

The owner must ascertain bid bond adequacy in the face of material escalation in project costs. 

Terminating a contractor assures full realization of increased materials costs, expensive and 

potentially extensive delays, and increased project inefficiencies. 

The owner also must reach a judgement on the continued viability of the contractor considering 

not only their financial position on this contract, but also their broader book of business. 

The preceding five steps focus on the particulars of the executed contract. A review of 

contractor claims is now discussed. 

 

Review of the Contractor’s Claims by Owner 
An owner’s careful review of contractor’s claims must be carried out in conjunction with the 

review of the existing contract framework, including information provided at the bid stage, 

especially if incorporated by reference or effectively a bid qualification. This review should: 

¶ Enumerate and classify contractor’s claims with respect to: 

o Scope and basis of claim, identifying any claimed changes in scope 

by owner or delay by owner. 

o Confirm notice periods and timeliness of notices provided. 
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Copper 

Copper is used in a range of applications from electrical cable, power industry major 

components, industrial motors, and select piping systems. Multiple indices exist and include 

Ycharts.com; Investing.com (futures); and TradingEconomics.com. Note the upward price 

forecast on the last chart. 
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refineries. As the global supply chain restarted, inventories for PVC and closely related diesel 

were at all-time lows. PVC can be considered a global commodity. China futures pricing is one 

index for this commodity and may be found on investing.com. 

 

 

 

Diesel 

Similar to PVC, 
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Strategies to Address Supply Chain Cost and Schedule Challenges 

Here the focus is on strategies to address cost and schedule challenges in supply chain 

constrained environments. For contracts currently underway, some of the measures outlined 

may serve to mitigate the challenges projects are already experiencing. 

The strategies are broadly grouped into those described as “client mitigation” and those 

described as “contractor mitigation.” Another group, “supply chain mitigation” strategies, are 

sometimes broken out, but here have been consolidated with “contractor mitigation” strategies. 

 

“Client Mitigation” Strategies 

The client is the owner of the project and before the first contract is let holds all the potential 

benefits and associated risks. In supply chain constrained situations, including those with high 

commodity volatility and escalation, the client is faced with some fundamental questions: 

¶ Does the planned project remain volatile in the current situation? 

¶ What is the level of risk that contractors and the marketplace are willing 

to take on? 

¶ Considering the associated cost of risk transfer, what is the optimum 

level of such transfer? 

o 
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¶ Risk limiting clauses, including: 

o “Day Zero” escalation (akin to a partial open book and applied 

only to select commodities). 

o Escalation clause, including indexing after an initial period 

where risks are transferred wholly to the contractor. Selection 

of the transfer period is important to ensure the contractor is 

focused on risk and cost management of critical commodities 

while limiting the tendency to shift cost risk to later project 

periods, thereby increasing schedule risk to the project. 

Escalation clauses should be limited to specific commodities and 

not broadly applied. Labor cost escalation presents some special 

challenges and are not covered in this Executive Insight. 

o Change provisions that provide for use of latest available pricing 

or if unit costs are reflected in the initial contract, appropriately 

indexed. Change provisions should recognize the costs 

associated with disruption and delay and appropriate 

procedures to determine the impact of changes agreed to at the 






